
School Board of Clay County
Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Date: May 05 2022 (6:00 p.m.)

Student Showcase (Orange Park Elementary Singing Eagles, Carly Distin (teacher))

Invocation (Dr. David Tarkington, First Baptist Church Orange Park)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Recognitions and Awards

1. Recognize President's Volunteer Service Award Recipients

2. Recognition of Poster Contest Winners by Clay Soil and Water Conservation District

Presenters

School Showcase (Orange Park Elementary, Principal Carole McCullough)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

3. C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop on March 29, 2022; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on
April 7, 2022

2022 Mar 29 Workshop.pdf

2022 Apr 7 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2022 Apr 7 Regular Mtg.pdf

School Board Member

4. C2 - School Board Member Out-of-County Travel Expenses Estimated to Attend FSBA/FADSS Annual Summer
Conference

Human Resources

5. C3 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Personnel Consent Agenda 5.5.2022.pdf

6. C4 - Renewal of 2022-2023 List of Physicians and Medical Facilities authorized to conduct physical examinations
required for certain groups of employees.

Page 1 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=43463
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44526
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=43485
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=43485
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2022-mar-29-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2022-apr-7-regular-mtg.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=43486
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=43486
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44543
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-552022-1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44544
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44544


Physicians and Facilities Listing 2022-2023.pdf

7. C5 - Salary Schedule - Section I, Table VI - Cafeteria Management

Salary Schedule Table IV - Cafeteria Management.pdf

Instruction-Academic Services

8. C6 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

May 2022 - Student Travel.pdf

9. C7 - Amendment to "Cooperative Agreement with the School Board of Clay County and Department of Juvenile
Justice."

May 2022 - Amendment to DJJ Agreement.pdf

10. C8 - Agreement between the School Board of Clay County and AMI Kids

May 2022- AMI Kids Contract.pdf

11. C9 - Lexia® LETRS® (Language Essentials for Teachers of Reading and Spelling)

Lexia® LETRS® (Language Essentials for Teachers of Reading and Spelling) Contract.pdf

LETRSSuiteBrochure_Feb2022.pdf

Instruction-Exceptional Student Education

12. C10 - Proclamation #22-19 to Recognize May as Better Speech and Hearing Month in Clay County

Proclamation #22-19 National SLP Day.pdf

Instruction-Climate and Culture

13. C11 - Proclamation of Mental Health Month May 2022

2022 mental health awareness month proclamation.pdf

14. C12 - Navigate 360, LLC curriculum to meet requirements set forth under Rule 6A-1.094124, F.A.C.)

Navigate 360 LLC Curriculum Mental Health and Prevention 22-23.pdf

Business Affairs

15. C13 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2021-22

16. C14 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2022-23

22 23 Allocation Summary - May 5, 2022.pdf

Business Affairs-Accounting

17. C15 - Monthly Financial Reports for March, 2022

March 2022 Board Monthly Financial Report.pdf

March 2022 Board Monthly Property Report.pdf

CONTRACTS 50 Thousand and Greater.xlsx.pdf

18. C16 - Budget Amendment Report for March  31, 2022

Budget Amendment March 2022.pdf

Page 2 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/physicians-and-facilities-listing-2022-2023.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44542
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/salary-schedule-table-iv-cafeteria-management.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44535
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/may-2022-student-travel.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44540
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44540
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/may-2022-amendment-to-djj-agreement_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=45549
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/may-2022-ami-kids-contract.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=45552
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/lexia-letrs-language-essentials-for-teachers-of-reading-and-spelling-contract.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/letrssuitebrochure_feb2022.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=45553
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proclamation-22-19-national-slp-day.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44516
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2022-mental-health-awareness-month-proclamation.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44532
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/navigate-360-llc-curriculum-mental-health-and-prevention-22-23.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=45547
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44501
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/22-23-allocation-summary-may-5-2022_4.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44547
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/march-2022-board-monthly-financial-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/march-2022-board-monthly-property-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contracts-50-thousand-and-greaterxlsx.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=45545
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/budget-amendment-march-2022.pdf


Business Affairs-Property

19. C17 - Deletion of Certain Items Report - April, 2022

Deletion Report April 2022.pdf

Business Affairs-Purchasing

20. C18 - BID Renewal

21. C19 - BID to be Awarded

Operations-Facilities

22. C20 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for S. Bryan Jennings Elementary
School Security Lighting Repair/Replacement

23. C21 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Fleming Island High School
Security Lighting Repair/Replacement

24. C22 - Ridgeview High School Restroom Renovations Contract Award

RHS Restroom Renovation Bid Tab.pdf

RHS Restroom Renovation Contract.pdf

25. C23 - W. E. Cherry Elementary School Spalling Remediation/Roof Replacement (Building 3 & 4 Reroof) Contract
Award

WEC Spalling Remediation Bid Tab.pdf

WEC Spalling & Roof Replacement Contract.pdf

26. C24 - Orange Park High School Front Entrance Security Enhancement Contract Award

OPH Front Entrance Security Enhancement Bid Tab.pdf

OPH Front Entrance Security Contract.pdf

27. C25 - Middleburg High School Roof Repair/Replacement (Building 1) Contract Award

MBHS Roof Repair.Replacement Building 1 Bid Tab.pdf

MHS Roof Replacement Bldg 1 Contract.pdf

28. C26 - Change Order #2 for Middleburg Transportation Fuel System Repair/Replacement

CO 2 Middleburg Transportation Fuel System.pdf

29. C27 - Approval of the Interlocal Agreement between the School Board of Clay County, Florida and the City of
Keystone Heights, Florida for Pecan Street improvements to close Pecan Street

Contract Review Form - Interlocal with the City of Keystone Hts..pdf

Interlocal Agreement with the City of Keystone Hts..pdf

30. C28 - Pre-Qualification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 5.5.22.pdf

Adoption of Consent Agenda

CCEA Update

Page 3 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44515
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-report-april-2022_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44534
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=45551
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44512
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44512
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44511
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44511
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44527
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/rhs-restroom-renovation-bid-tab.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/rhs-restroom-renovation-contract_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44528
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44528
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/wec-spalling-remediation-bid-tab.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/wec-spalling-roof-replacement-contract_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44529
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/oph-front-entrance-security-enhancement-bid-tab.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/oph-front-entrance-security-contract.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44530
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/mbhs-roof-repairreplacement-building-1-bid-tab.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/mhs-roof-replacement-bldg-1-contract.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44531
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/co-2-middleburg-transportation-fuel-system.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44541
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44541
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contract-review-form-interlocal-with-the-city-of-keystone-hts.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/interlocal-agreement-with-the-city-of-keystone-hts_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=45550
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-5522.pdf


CESPA Update

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

Discussion Agenda

Human Resources

31. D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

School Board Attorney Remarks

School Board Member Remarks

Adjournment

Page 4 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=44545


School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognize President's Volunteer Service Award Recipients

Description
The President's Volunteer Service Award is a prestigious national honor that highlights commitment to serving the community
and the nation and requires a minimum of 100 hours of community service within the last year.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Recognition only.

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 5 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of Poster Contest Winners by Clay Soil and Water Conservation District

Description
Each year, the Clay Soil and Water Conservation District holds an annual poster contest for all CCDS students in grades K - 12,
as well as an annual speech contest for all CCDS students in grades 6 - 12.  The winning posters and speeches reflect the
National Association of Conservation District's annual stewardship theme and highlight the work of conservation districts and
their state conservation associations, auxiliaries, and agencies to protect and enhance natural resources.  The contest begins at the
district level, winners advance to the area level, then to the state level, and then to the national level.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Recognition only.

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 6 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop on March 29, 2022; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on April 7, 2022

Description
Florida Statute 1001.42(1) requires the superintendent, as secretary, to keep such minutes and records as are necessary to set
forth clearly all actions and proceedings of the school board.  The minutes of each meeting shall be reviewed, corrected if
necessary, and approved at the next regular meeting; provided that this action may be taken at an intervening special meeting if
the board desires.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Approve minutes as submitted.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools, david.broskie@myoneclay.net; Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2022 Mar 29 Workshop.pdf

2022 Apr 7 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2022 Apr 7 Regular Mtg.pdf

Page 7 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2022-mar-29-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2022-apr-7-regular-mtg.pdf


Page 8 of 335

DRAFT



Page 9 of 335

DRAFT



Page 10 of 335

DRAFT



Page 11 of 335

DRAFT



Page 12 of 335

DRAFT



Page 13 of 335

DRAFT



Page 14 of 335

DRAFT



Page 15 of 335

DRAFT



Page 16 of 335

DRAFT



Page 17 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C2 - School Board Member Out-of-County Travel Expenses Estimated to Attend FSBA/FADSS Annual Summer Conference

Description
Reimbursement of travel expenses for school board members is addressed in Florida Statutes 112.061, 1001.39 and the rules of
the State Board of Education.  Specifically, F.S. 1001.39 reads, “… any travel outside of the district that exceeds $500 requires
prior approval by the district school board to confirm that such travel is for official business of the school district and complies
with rules of the State Board of Education.  Any request for travel outside the state must include an itemized list detailing all
anticipated travel expenses, including, but not limited to, the anticipated costs of all means of travel, lodging, and subsistence. 
Immediately preceding a request, the public must have an opportunity to speak on the specific travel agenda item.” 
School Board members typically attend two in-state conferences yearly that are sponsored by the Florida School Boards
Association.  In addition, periodic technical assistance is provided throughout the fiscal year for all Board members.  Currently,
there is no planned out-of-state travel.
Estimated costs below include registration fees, lodging, meals, mileage, and other incidental expenses.
Estimated Travel Expenses To Attend FSBA/FADSS Annual Summer Conference

Date/Conference
Board
Members
Attending

Location Purpose
Estimated
Cost

June
2022 FADSS/FSBA
Annual Joint
Summer Conference

Bolla,
Bullock,
Gilhousen,
Kerekes,
Clark

Tampa
FL

Official
Business of
the District

  $5,500

 

Gap Analysis
Professional development provides valuable leadership training for school board members.  The majority of the training, but not
necessarily all training, is provided through the Board’s professional organization, Florida School Boards Association.  Training
includes yearly legislative updates on issues important to school systems in Florida as well as other important topics that impact
public education. 

Previous Outcomes
Board members have attended training and conferences in the past and gained valuable insight on education issues.

Expected Outcomes
Board members will continue to attend upcoming trainings and conferences and gain valuable insight on education issues.

Strategic Plan Goal
2.4 Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Recommend approval

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$5,500.00 (This is a rough estimate with the assumption that all five board members would have the opportunity to attend.)

Review Comments

Page 18 of 335

DRAFT



Attachments

Page 19 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C3 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Description
Florida Statutes, State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification and/or action regarding
decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  Actions regarding personnel have been
recommended by Supervisors, approved by the Superintendent and are being forwarded to the Board for action or, if appropriate,
for information.  Personnel Actions, Transfer Requests, Pre-employments, Leave Forms or Directives from the Superintendent
are available for review in the Human Resources Division.

Gap Analysis
These personnel actions are necessary for the effective operation of the school district.

Previous Outcomes
The Clay County School Board has approved each month a Personnel Consent Agenda which contains appointments, re-
appointments, transfers, redesignations, retirements, resignations, and conclude employments.

Expected Outcomes
Approval of the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.
 
Initiative 5.1.1 - Recruit and retain highly skilled, qualified, and diverse educators, leaders, and support staff.

Recommendation
To approve the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Personnel changes involving already-allocated positions will result in salary impact per the current Board-approved Salary
Schedule.  This also includes supplemental positions.  See current backup for allocation changes for impact of new positions.

Review Comments

Attachments

Personnel Consent Agenda 5.5.2022.pdf

Page 20 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-552022-1.pdf


Page 21 of 335

DRAFT



Page 22 of 335

DRAFT



Page 23 of 335

DRAFT



Page 24 of 335

DRAFT



Page 25 of 335

DRAFT



Page 26 of 335

DRAFT



Page 27 of 335

DRAFT



Page 28 of 335

DRAFT



Page 29 of 335

DRAFT



Page 30 of 335

DRAFT



Page 31 of 335

DRAFT



Page 32 of 335

DRAFT



Page 33 of 335

DRAFT



Page 34 of 335

DRAFT



Page 35 of 335

DRAFT



Page 36 of 335

DRAFT



Page 37 of 335

DRAFT



Page 38 of 335

DRAFT



Page 39 of 335

DRAFT



Page 40 of 335

DRAFT



Page 41 of 335

DRAFT



Page 42 of 335

DRAFT



Page 43 of 335

DRAFT



Page 44 of 335

DRAFT



Page 45 of 335

DRAFT



Page 46 of 335

DRAFT



Page 47 of 335

DRAFT



Page 48 of 335

DRAFT



Page 49 of 335

DRAFT



Page 50 of 335

DRAFT



Page 51 of 335

DRAFT



Page 52 of 335

DRAFT



Page 53 of 335

DRAFT



Page 54 of 335

DRAFT



Page 55 of 335

DRAFT



Page 56 of 335

DRAFT



Page 57 of 335

DRAFT



Page 58 of 335

DRAFT



Page 59 of 335

DRAFT



Page 60 of 335

DRAFT



Page 61 of 335

DRAFT



Page 62 of 335

DRAFT



Page 63 of 335

DRAFT



Page 64 of 335

DRAFT



Page 65 of 335

DRAFT



Page 66 of 335

DRAFT



Page 67 of 335

DRAFT



Page 68 of 335

DRAFT



Page 69 of 335

DRAFT



Page 70 of 335

DRAFT



Page 71 of 335

DRAFT



Page 72 of 335

DRAFT



Page 73 of 335

DRAFT



Page 74 of 335

DRAFT



Page 75 of 335

DRAFT



Page 76 of 335

DRAFT



Page 77 of 335

DRAFT



Page 78 of 335

DRAFT



Page 79 of 335

DRAFT



Page 80 of 335

DRAFT



Page 81 of 335

DRAFT



Page 82 of 335

DRAFT



Page 83 of 335

DRAFT



Page 84 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C4 - Renewal of 2022-2023 List of Physicians and Medical Facilities authorized to conduct physical examinations required for
certain groups of employees.

Description
School Board Policy and Florida Statutes require Physical Examinations for certain employees and job candidates. 
Physicians/Facilities used in administering physical examinations  of employees and fees charged for those services must be
approved by the School Board.  Nine (9) requests to submit a bid to conduct the district physical exams were sent to local
physicians in Clay and surrounding counties.  The charge shown on the attachment are the physicians and quotes received.  They
are considered reasonable and are recommended for approval.
 

Gap Analysis
The district currently has an active list of participating physicians for the 2021-2022 school year.  The services must be approved
by the School Board annually with updated bids.

Previous Outcomes
The current list of participating and approved physicians consisted of eight facilities for the 2021-22 fiscal year.

Expected Outcomes
The School Board will approve the list of current bids for the 2022-2023 school year so that we can use the physicians on the list
beginning on 7/1/2022.

Strategic Plan Goal
Overall Function of Human Resources.

Recommendation
Approve the Physicians/Facilities and costs presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net  904.336.6701

Financial Impact
Approximately $50,000 has been budgeted for physical examinations for certain employees and job candidates.  The quotes
received and recommended are considered reasonable.

Review Comments

Attachments

Physicians and Facilities Listing 2022-2023.pdf

Page 85 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/physicians-and-facilities-listing-2022-2023.pdf


Page 86 of 335

DRAFT



Page 87 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C5 - Salary Schedule - Section I, Table VI - Cafeteria Management

Description
Florida Statutes 1012.22 and 1012.27 require the district school board and superintendent to adopt a salary schedule to be used as
a basis for paying school district employees.  Any changes or revisions made to the salary schedule throughout the school year
are brought to the School Board for approval.
With the approval of the Food and Nutrition Services job description for Cafeteria Manager Intern, High School Based, there is a
need to update Table VI - Cafeteria Management and add this Job Title, Pay Grade and Salary Range.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve Section I, Table VI - Cafeteria Management, as requested.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net,  904.336.6701

Financial Impact
The Financial Impact will range from $21,257 - $33,938, depending on the incoming employee's background and experience.

Review Comments

Attachments

Salary Schedule Table IV - Cafeteria Management.pdf

Page 88 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/salary-schedule-table-iv-cafeteria-management.pdf


Page 89 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C6 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

Page 90 of 335

DRAFT



Description
The School Board recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an educationally
sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field trips supplement
and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum standards of the
State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student-travel activity which is approved as part of the district's
educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as designated
by the Superintendent.
                                                                                                  Field Trips Details

School Date Destination Group Purpose

Clay High
7/21-23,
2022

Webber
University

Football
Team

Football Camp

Fleming Island
High

TBD - June
or July,
2022

Valdosta
State, GA

Football
Team

Football Camp

Fleming Island
High

6/18-25,
2022

Milledgeville,
GA

NJROTC Area-12 Leadership Academy

Keystone
Heights High

6/13-17,
2022

Camp
Shands Boy
Scout Camp,
Hawthorne,
FL

Army
JROTC

Teamwork and Leadership Camp

Keystone
Heights High

6/21-23,
2022

Universal,
Orlando, FL

Journalism/
Yearbook

Photography skills and yearbook design and
marketing training.

Keystone
Heights High

4/19-21,
2022

Orlando, FL
HOPE
Ambassad
or Club

Youth leaders will learn innovative ways to help
themselves and assist their peers in dealing with
behavioral health issues.

Keystone
Heights High

4/22-23,
2022

Port St. Joe,
FL

Boys
Weightliftin
g

FHSAA State Weightlifting Meet

Middleburg High 9/1-3, 2022 Orlando, FL
Varsity
Volleyball

Volleyball Tournament

Middleburg High
10/7-8,
2022

Orlando, FL
Varsity
Volleyball

Volleyball Tournament

Oakleaf High
4/8-10,
2022

UCF Step Team

Students will be exposed to a 4-year University
College and have the opportunity to learn about
different aspects of the college, obtain a higher level
of college knowledge and see what a college has to
offer.

Ridgeview High
4/15-16,
2022

Tampa, FL
Baseball
Team

Baseball Tournament

Academic Team
3/31-4/2,
2022

Orlando, FL
County
Academic
Team

35th Commissioner's Academic Challenge

State Science
Fair

3/29-4/1,
2022

Lakeland, FL
State
Science
Fair

Participate in the State Science Fair

International
Science Fair

5/8-13,
2022

Atlanta, GA
Internation
al Science
Fair

Participate in the International Science Fair

         

Gap Analysis
Field trips provide students with a window to the real world that they don't get in the classroom, and they can help students
understand real-world applications to abstract concepts.

Page 91 of 335

DRAFT



Previous Outcomes
All out of county activity trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written district
policy.

Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that learning outcomes from field trips can range from cognitive to affective outcomes. Exposing
students to new experiences and can increase interest and engagement in academics regardless of prior interests.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure that every classroom provides a quality and rigorous instructional experience in order to elevate student outcomes.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve out of county student travel.   

Contact
Roger Dailey, Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum & Instruction; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6904
Treasure Pickett, Director of K-12 Academic Services; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

May 2022 - Student Travel.pdf

Page 92 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/may-2022-student-travel.pdf


Page 93 of 335

DRAFT



Page 94 of 335

DRAFT



Page 95 of 335

DRAFT



Page 96 of 335

DRAFT



Page 97 of 335

DRAFT



Page 98 of 335

DRAFT



Page 99 of 335

DRAFT



Page 100 of 335

DRAFT



Page 101 of 335

DRAFT



Page 102 of 335

DRAFT



Page 103 of 335

DRAFT



Page 104 of 335

DRAFT



Page 105 of 335

DRAFT



Page 106 of 335

DRAFT



Page 107 of 335

DRAFT



Page 108 of 335

DRAFT



Page 109 of 335

DRAFT



Page 110 of 335

DRAFT



Page 111 of 335

DRAFT



Page 112 of 335

DRAFT



Page 113 of 335

DRAFT



Page 114 of 335

DRAFT



Page 115 of 335

DRAFT



Page 116 of 335

DRAFT



Page 117 of 335

DRAFT



Page 118 of 335

DRAFT



Page 119 of 335

DRAFT



Page 120 of 335

DRAFT



Page 121 of 335

DRAFT



Page 122 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C7 - Amendment to "Cooperative Agreement with the School Board of Clay County and Department of Juvenile Justice."

Description
The Amendment as follows to align with the current Florida Statute 1003.51 and Rule 6A-1.045111.  The School Board will
ensure that at least 95% of the Florida Education Finance Program funds generated by students in juvenile justice programs or in
education programs for juveniles under Florida Statute 9085.19 be spent on instructional costs for those students.  Juvenile
justice nonresidential schools may provide instruction based on the hourly equivalent (1,250 instructional hours) of the 250-day
calendar.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Clay County has had a positive working relationship with the DJJ.  The relationship has yielded a solid communication system
whereby the District liaison meets on a regular basis with DJJ officials and with returning students and parents.  The importance
of effective communication is further highlighted by the need to place students in the most appropriate educational setting.

Expected Outcomes
To continue the collaborative agreement with the DJJ so as to expedite the educational setting of a returning student in the most
positive environment possible so that the student experiences success.  With this agreement, students will experience a seemless
transition back into the Clay school system.

Strategic Plan Goal
The school district will work closely with the DJJ in order to increase the success rate of returning students.  In addition, the
District liaison will coordinate all services between the DJJ and the assignment of the appropriate setting for the student.

Recommendation
Approval of the amendment between the Department of Juvenile Justice and the School Board of Clay County.

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief of Academic Services; 904-336-6904; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net
Treasure Pickett, Director of K-12 Academic Services; 904-336-6918; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Clay County allocat4es 95% of an FTE to DJJ; 5% of an FTE is allocated to the School Board of Clay County.

Review Comments

Attachments

May 2022 - Amendment to DJJ Agreement.pdf

Page 123 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/may-2022-amendment-to-djj-agreement_1.pdf


Page 124 of 335

DRAFT



Page 125 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C8 - Agreement between the School Board of Clay County and AMI Kids

Description
A collaborative agreement between the School Board of Clay County and the AMI Kids Clay County, Inc., to address the needs
of male students in Clay County.  This program works in conjunction with the Department of Juvenile Justice, to provide an
educational program and related services for eligible male students (up to 44 students).  This program focuses on student needs
dealing with specialized counseling, credit recovery services, life skills, positive gender identification, community service
learning projects, and career exploration.  Students attend the program for approximately 1 year.  The collaboration between the
two organizations has allowed students to seek an alternative setting to a previously unsuccessful environment. 

Gap Analysis
The district monitors the program and their intervention strategies in order to yield positive results in the areas of academics,
social behavior, and the number of students who successfully return to their home school.
 

Previous Outcomes
AMI Kids earned a school accountablility rating of "Acceptable" in the 2020-21 DJJ Accountability Report, which was 1% from
Commendable. (2021- 22 rating will be reported in June)

Expected Outcomes
By continuing the collaboration with AMI Kids, it is expected that students will be identified by the secondary schools,
Bannerman Learning Center, recommended by parents, and/or the student volunteers for the program.  AMI Kids is notified by
any of these sources and students are oriented to the program.  Once the students are enrolled, they begin the counseling program
offered and then the credit/course recovery program begins.  Periodic meetings take place to review outcomes and to
communicate with the District on proposed return dates of the students.  Through the District plan, students are able to recoup
credits and, therefore, remain on track to either be promoted or to earn the necessary credits towards graduation.  Curriculum
deficiencies are addressed, counseling and behavior therapy takes place, increasing the likelihood of success for the students.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 3: Establish a respectful climate and culture that provides equity and access to all.
Strategy 3.1: Engage stakeholders to strengthen and build a collaborative and constructive environment that encourages high
expectations for all.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the agreement between AMI Kids and the School Board of Clay County.

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net, 904-336-6905
Treasure Pickett, Director of K-12 Academic Services; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net, 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
Clay County allocates 95% of an FTE to AMI Kids; 5% of an FTE is allocated to the School Board of Clay County.

Review Comments

Attachments

May 2022- AMI Kids Contract.pdf

Page 126 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/may-2022-ami-kids-contract.pdf


Page 127 of 335

DRAFT



Page 128 of 335

DRAFT



Page 129 of 335

DRAFT



Page 130 of 335

DRAFT



Page 131 of 335

DRAFT



Page 132 of 335

DRAFT



Page 133 of 335

DRAFT



Page 134 of 335

DRAFT



Page 135 of 335

DRAFT



Page 136 of 335

DRAFT



Page 137 of 335

DRAFT



Page 138 of 335

DRAFT



Page 139 of 335

DRAFT



Page 140 of 335

DRAFT



Page 141 of 335

DRAFT



Page 142 of 335

DRAFT



Page 143 of 335

DRAFT



Page 144 of 335

DRAFT



Page 145 of 335

DRAFT



Page 146 of 335

DRAFT



Page 147 of 335

DRAFT



Page 148 of 335

DRAFT



Page 149 of 335

DRAFT



Page 150 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C9 - Lexia® LETRS® (Language Essentials for Teachers of Reading and Spelling)

Description
The LETRS® (Language Essentials for Teachers of Reading and Spelling) Suite is professional learning that
provides educators and administrators with deep knowledge to be literacy and language experts in the science
of reading. Developed by renowned literacy experts Dr. Louisa Moats, Dr. Carol Tolman, and Dr. Lucy Hart
Paulson, it is a flexible literacy professional learning solution for educators and administrators. LETRS®
teaches the skills needed for developing the fundamentals of reading instruction—phonological awareness,
phonics, fluency, vocabulary, comprehension, writing, and language. 

Gap Analysis
Districts must ensure that intensive reading interventions are delivered by instructional personnel who are certified or endorsed in
reading (Section 1011.62(8)(d), F.S.), and that Summer Reading Camp instruction for grade 3 students who score Level 1 on the
statewide standardized assessment for ELA is provided by a highly effective teacher endorsed or certified in reading. The
Language Essentials for Teachers of Reading and Spelling (LETRS®) is a state approved professional development course of
study for the reading endorsement. The LETRS® course of study assists educators with developing, increasing, and
demonstrating knowledge of explicit, systematic, sequential, and multi-sensory approaches to reading instruction as outlined in
the in-service requirement identified in Florida Statute s. 1012.585(3) F.S. Additionally, the LETRS® course of study assists
educators with effectively meeting the needs of students with reading difficulties and disabilities, including dyslexia outlined in
the in-service requirement for teaching students with disabilities (SWD) per Senate Bill 1108 (SB 1108). Reporting of data
elements is required by Rule 6A.6.053(7)(e) of the District K-12 Comprehensive Evidence-Based Reading Plan within the
Comprehensive Management Information System as provided in Rule 6A-1.0014, F.A.C. These data elements include: 1.
Student Enrollment in Reading Intervention; 2. Reading Endorsement competency status for teachers; and 3. Reading
Certification progress status for teachers.

Previous Outcomes
Based on 2021-2022 district MTSS reporting data, 439 scholars are currently being provided tier 3 reading interventions
requiring a reading endorsed teacher.

-

Based on 2020-2021 district Mid-Year i-Ready Diagnostic Data for grades K through sixth grade,17% of students were at-
risk for Tier 3 intervention (two or more grade levels below). 

-

Based on 2019-2020 district Mid-Year i-Ready Diagnostic Data for grades K through sixth grade,15% of students were at-
risk for Tier 3 intervention (two or more grade levels below).

-

Based on 2019-2020 district Mid-Year i-Ready Diagnostic Data for grades K through sixth grade,15% of students were at-
risk for Tier 3 intervention (two or more grade levels below).

-

Expected Outcomes
The expected outcomes include increasing the number of teachers in the district who are reading endorsed to provide reading
intervention to students identified with substantial reading deficiencies (tier 3 instruction and intervention) in accordance with
Section 1011.62(8)(d), F.S.requiring intensive reading interventions must be delivered by instructional personnel who are
certified or endorsed in reading.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 1: Develop Great Educators and Leaders 
Strategy 1.2: Provide diagnostic and prescriptive interventions for differentiated instruction in reading.

Page 151 of 335

DRAFT



Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the purchase of Lexia® LETRS® (Language Essentials for Teachers of Reading
and Spelling) for supporting teachers with obtaining the requirements for adding the reading endorsement to their teaching
certificate.  

Contact
Roger Dailey,  Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904  roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
For 07/01/2022-06/30/2023, the fiscal impact of the Lexia® LETRS® (Language Essentials for Teachers of Reading and
Spelling) participant materials bundle (print + license) with face-to-face or live webinar professional learning will not exceed
$125,000.00 from the 2022-2023 Florida Education Finance Program (FEFP) Evidence-Based Reading Instruction Allocation for
professional development and training material.

Review Comments

Attachments

Lexia® LETRS® (Language Essentials for Teachers of Reading and Spelling) Contract.pdf

LETRSSuiteBrochure_Feb2022.pdf

Page 152 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/lexia-letrs-language-essentials-for-teachers-of-reading-and-spelling-contract.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/letrssuitebrochure_feb2022.pdf


Page 153 of 335

DRAFT



Page 154 of 335

DRAFT



Page 155 of 335

DRAFT



Page 156 of 335

DRAFT



Page 157 of 335

DRAFT



Page 158 of 335

DRAFT



Page 159 of 335

DRAFT



Page 160 of 335

DRAFT



Page 161 of 335

DRAFT



Page 162 of 335

DRAFT



Page 163 of 335

DRAFT



Page 164 of 335

DRAFT



Page 165 of 335

DRAFT



Page 166 of 335

DRAFT



Page 167 of 335

DRAFT



Page 168 of 335

DRAFT



Page 169 of 335

DRAFT



Page 170 of 335

DRAFT



Page 171 of 335

DRAFT



LANGUAGE ESSENTIALS FOR TEACHERS 
OF READING AND SPELLING

Literacy Professional 
Learning

NOW ALSO ONLINE

INFORMED TEACHERS CHANGE LIVES

—LOUISA MOATS, ED.D.

Teachers are the most important factor in student success. 

Informed teachers can explain language to students, including 

sounds, spellings, and word meanings that might be 

confusing. They use lessons based on reading science and 

understand the process of learning to read and write. 

Research proves it. Science matters. 

Page 172 of 335

DRAFT



Why are only 35% 
of U.S. students 
reading proficiently 
or better?*

Teachers Matter.
Research shows that only 35 percent of students 

are reading proficiently, but 95 percent of students 

CAN learn to read. And while teachers are the MOST 

essential factor in student success, only 49 percent of 

teaching institutions effectively prepare teachers for 

literacy instruction. 

Teaching reading requires a deep understanding 

of the processes and science behind it. LETRS is the 

professional learning that empowers teachers. 

95%
OF ALL STUDENTS CAN LEARN TO READ.

2
Page 173 of 335

DRAFT



3

LETRS is based on more than 
two decades of research 

The most important factor 
to student success is the 
teacher. 
They, not programs, teach students how to read. Yet a 

study of most teaching institutions found a huge deficit 

in the number of programs that actually prepare teachers 

with all five essential components of literacy instruction: 

phonemic awareness, phonics, fluency, vocabulary, and 

comprehension.**  Additionally, the 2019 National Assessment 

of Educational Progress, NAEP,  study found 66 percent of U.S. 

fourth grade students are not proficient readers.

Reading requires multiple parts of the brain learning 

to work together. Teaching reading requires a deep 

understanding of the science behind how we learn to read, 

why we spell the way we do, or how phonemic awareness 

and phonics lead to comprehension. Without this 

understanding, teachers are left feeling ill prepared. That’s 

why LETRS® bridges decades of evidenced-based research 

into classroom success. 

*nationsreportcard.gov/reading/nation/achievement?grade=4

**nctq.org/publications/2020-Teacher-Prep-Review:-Program-Performance-in-Early-Reading-Instruction

Page 174 of 335

DRAFT



4

SCIENCE  OF 
READING

CONVERTS  RESEARCH 
TO  PRACT ICE

Proven to Accelerate Teacher Knowledge
 LETRS addresses four critical outcomes for effective literacy instruction: understanding the science of reading,  

converting research to practice, enhancing teacher effectiveness, and transforming instruction. By understanding the 

“why” behind science and evidence-based research, educators can effectively know how to aid students in learning 

to read.  LETRS professional learning is relevant and applicable and designed to be the cornerstone of a multiyear, 

systemic literacy improvement initiative. 

Leverages decades of research 
including the latest neuroscience 

to help educators identify the 
source of reading difficulties and 

how to teach more effectively.

Evidence-based research and 
strategies that explain the “why”   
behind comprehensive literacy 
instruction, providing explicit 

instruction about “how”  
to effectively teach for the  

best results.

“Going through LETRS, you sit there, moment-by-moment, 
thinking, ‘I should have known this.’ It’s the tool to change 
lives and change communities.” 

—Ebony Lee, Ph.D. 
Director of Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment 

Clayton County Public Schools, GA

Page 175 of 335

DRAFT



5

ENHANCES  TEACHER 
EFFECT IVENESS

TRANSFORMS 
INSTRUCT ION

Teacher effectiveness is 
more significant to student 

achievement than any other 
factor. When teachers know the 
“why” and “how” of reading, they 

can change lives. 

Provides a common language and 
understanding of evidence-based 

reading practices. Promotes effective 
and consistent literacy instruction 

school- and district-wide. Helps 
prevent and remediate reading 

difficulties for all students. 

Page 176 of 335

DRAFT



6

What Makes LETRS Unique?

LETRS® is a professional learning experience that bridges deep, meaningful research into practical 

classroom success. LETRS provides educators with the science of reading, depth of knowledge, 

and tools to teach language and literacy skills to every student. 

Volume 2  •  Units 5–8

Louisa C. Moats

Carol A. Tolman

Flexible Implementation Models

LETRS provides practical support to teachers with tools that 

are available 24/7—online, print, and in-person consulting 

services—and ongoing support throughout the school 

year with strategies specific to instruction. LETRS meets 

educators where they are in terms of resources and options 

and can be used with any quality literacy program. 

Page 177 of 335

DRAFT



Percent of Niles City, OH Students  
Whose Benchmark Performances Improved with LETRS

Beginning of Year End of YearMidyear

100

Grade 1
2016–2017

Grade 2
2016–2017

40

80

20

60

0

38

59 61
73

At Niles City Schools, 38 percent of first grade students and 61 percent 
of second grade students were performing above benchmark during 
the same period. Once LETRS was implemented, the number of 
students performing above benchmark levels increased considerably 
by year end.

100

Kindergarten
2016–2017

Kindergarten
2017–mid-year

40

80

20

60

0

53

89

51

77

36%
 26%

 21%


12%


Fifty-three percent of the Niles City Schools kindergarten students were 
at or above benchmark at the start of the 2016–2017 school year. That 
figure improved to 89 percent by the end of the school year. Early data 
for the 2017–2018 school year showed significant improvement as well. 
Fifty-one percent were at or above benchmark at the start, while 77 
percent were at or above benchmark at the midyear point.

7

Established on Evidence-Based Research 
with a Focus on Language

LETRS has more than a decade of demonstrated success 

in schools and districts across the U.S., and fills the gaps in 

language structure and language development that were 

not taught in teacher-preparation courses.

Page 178 of 335

DRAFT



Integrated Bridge to Practice Exercises**

Throughout LETRS, Bridge to Practice opportunities allow 
teachers to apply evidence-based concepts and best practices 
to daily classroom instruction.  

• The online Bridge to Practice exercises are designed
to bolster transference of knowledge to classroom practice.

• Explicit directions are provided as well as downloadable
tools for support.

What Makes LETRS Unique?

8
Page 179 of 335

DRAFT



Embedded Video Modeling of Instruction**

Embedded video demonstrates how to deliver effective 
instruction that teachers understand and how to apply 
concepts to classroom practice. 

**Only available through the online platform.

Detailed Reporting for Accountability**

LETRS gives participants and administrators the ability 
to measure participation and knowledge gains.

9
Page 180 of 335

DRAFT



10

What Will Teachers Learn?

LETRS units address each essential component of reading instruction 
and the foundational concepts that link each component.

Units 1–4 Units 5–8

Unit 1    The Challenge of Learning to Read 

• Why reading is difficult
• The connection between language and literacy
• What the brain does when a person is reading
• The skills that support proficient reading
• How children learn to read and spell
• Major types of reading difficulties
• How to use assessment for prevention and early intervention
• Using assessment to differentiate instruction

Unit 2    The Speech Sounds of English 

• Phonology related to reading and spelling
• How phonological skills develop
• The importance of phonemic awareness
• The consonant and vowel phonemes of the English

language
• Recognize and respond to errors of English learners and

dialect speakers
• Recognize how allophonic variation in speech affects

students’ spelling
• How phonological skills should be taught, and which ones

should be assessed

Theoretical models from 
reading science; phonology, 
basic and advanced phonics; 
screening and educational 
diagnostic assessment

Teaching vocabulary, language 
and reading comprehension, 
and writing

UNITS
Volume 2  •  Units 5–8

Louisa C. Moats

Carol A. Tolman

Volume 1  •  Units 1–4

Louisa C. Moats

Carol A. Tolman

Page 181 of 335

DRAFT



11

Unit 3     Teaching Beginning Phonics, Word
Recognition, and Spelling 

• The role of the strands of the Reading Rope in word
recognition

• The role of phonics in reading instruction
• Compare code-emphasis instruction with

meaning-emphasis instruction
• Explore phoneme-grapheme correspondence system of

English
• Classify phonics elements
• Understand some basic patterns of position-based spelling

in English
• Instruction sequence: letter names and letter formation; key

word for sound-symbol associations; teach correspondences
explicitly; use sound-blending routines

• Word practice and word meaning routines
• How to teach spelling using dictation
• Decodable text and when it is important to use
• Using data to further student success

Unit 4   Advanced Decoding, Spelling, and
Word  Recognition 

• Advanced word study
• Position-based spelling correspondences and other

orthographic conventions
• Phoneme-grapheme mapping
• The six syllable types and how they should be taught
• Distinguish syllables from morphemes
• Suffix rules
• Spelling screeners and how to interpret the results
• Best practices for teaching spelling
• Relationship between reading fluency and reading

comprehension
• Building word, sentence, and passage reading fluency
• Interpret phonological, phonics, spelling, and

fluency data
• Aligning practices with scientific evidence

Unit 5     The Mighty Word: Oral Language
and Vocabulary 

• The relationship among vocabulary knowledge, background
knowledge, oral language proficiency, and reading
comprehension

• Mental map of a well-known word
• Words that should be taught directly
• Introducing new words
• Effective practice of new words
• Creating a language-rich classroom

Unit 6     Digging for Meaning: Understanding
Reading Comprehension 

• The language and cognitive skills that support reading
comprehension

• Distinguish comprehension products from comprehension
processes

• The goal of comprehension instruction is to create a
coherent mental model of the text

• Characteristics of students who struggle with language and
reading comprehension

• The connection among vocabulary, background knowledge,
and reading comprehension

• Process for teaching texts
• The importance of syntax and how to teach it
• The importance of text coherence and its relationship to

mental coherence
• How text structure affects comprehension

Unit 7    Text-Driven Comprehension Instruction 

• The balance of foundational skills with language
comprehension

• Which comprehension strategies are supported by research
• Effective strategies during and after reading
• Student-generated questions before, during, and after

reading
• The importance of generating questions that deepen

understanding of text
• Reread and revisit text for various purposes
• The process for planning an entire reading comprehension

lesson for narrative and informational text
• Adapting instruction or special populations

Unit 8    The Reading-Writing Connection 

• Writing is important because it benefits reading
• Understand the foundational and language skills necessary

for writing
• The phases of the writing process
• Letter formation and handwriting fluency
• Explicit instruction for spelling
• How students gain competence in building sentences
• Narrative writing development
• Informational and opinion writing development
• Methods for assessing student progress in writing

Page 182 of 335

DRAFT



LETRS Helped Transform Mississippi

Mississippi is one of many shining examples of how instruction rooted in the science of reading and 

backed by scientific research can transform outcomes. A statewide LETRS implementation catapulted 

Mississippi to No 1. in the U.S. on the 2019 NAEP. 

Teachers Matter
With LETRS, 62 percent of 
Mississippi teachers rated above 
average or excellent in teacher 
performance. 

Reading is Science 
Mississippi’s scores demonstrate a 
science-based approach maintains 
consistent, powerful improvement 
year over year.  

Mississippi 
Outperforms All
With LETRS, Mississippi is 
the only state to increase 

scores on the NAEP.

Had a score 
increase

had no significant 
change in score

had a score 
decrease

12

OR

WA

MT ND
MN

IA

MO

AR

LA

WI

IL IN

KY
TN

ALMS GA
SC

NC

VA

PA

NY

ME

WV

FL

MI

OH

SD

NE

KS

OK

WY

CO

NM

TX

UT

AZ

AK

NV
CA

ID

ALL STATES/JURISDICTIONS 2017-2019

1

34

17

62%

24%
WITHOUT
letrs

WITH
letrs

10

20

30

40

50

60

%
 O

F
TE

A
CH

ER
S

Teacher 
Performance 

Rocketed

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

PASSED
85% PASSED

87%
PASSED
92%

PASSED
93%

STATEWIDE END-OF-THIRD GRADE READING PASSING RATES

mdek12.org/OPR/Reporting/Reports

–

Page 183 of 335

DRAFT



LETRS Drives Success

When general education and intervention teachers learn and apply the information contained in LETRS, 

such substantive professional learning has been shown to have powerful beneficial effects on student 

learning, including:  

• An increase in overall achievement levels and fewer students experiencing reading difficulties
• Effective teachers who are more content and whose sense of efficacy and empowerment will replace

burnout and low expectations

In Ohio
In Ohio, where Niles City Schools (NCS) 
implemented LETRS, the district’s K–3 
students reading at or above average 
increased from 56 percent to 87percent 
within one school year.

In just one year, student literacy success at 
NCS improved dramatically, according to 
the district’s universal screening measure, 
DIBELS Next® (Dynamic Indicators of 
Basic Early Literacy Skills Next), also a 
Voyager Sopris Learning® product.

56%

87%

PRE-TEST POST-TEST

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

STUDENTS AT OR ABOVE AVERAGE READING LEVEL

13
Page 184 of 335

DRAFT



14

Dr. Louisa C. Moats
Louisa C. Moats, Ed.D., is a nationally recognized authority on literacy education 

and is acclaimed as a researcher, speaker, consultant, and trainer. Dr. Moats 

received her doctorate in reading and human development at the Harvard 

Graduate School of Education and is widely published on reading instruction, 

the professional learning of teachers, and the relationship between language, 

reading, and spelling. Dr. Moats’ awards include the prestigious Samuel Torrey 

Orton Award and June L. Orton Award from the International Dyslexia Association® 

for outstanding contributions to the field and the Eminent Researcher Award from 

Learning Difficulties Australia. Dr. Moats also received the Benita A. Blachman 

Award from The Reading League.

Respected Authorship

“Informed teachers are our best insurance 
against reading failure. While programs are very 
helpful tools, programs don’t teach, teachers do.” 

—Dr. Louisa Moats

Dr. Carol A. Tolman
Carol A. Tolman, Ed.D.,  has presented LETRS hundreds of times, in all states and 

districts, as the lead trainer of trainers. With unparalleled talent as a teacher of 

teachers and enabler of school change, Dr. Tolman also has more than 25 years of 

experience in public schools and the juvenile justice system. In addition  

to spearheading many successful, long-term literacy initiatives, Dr. Tolman 

organized and delivered curriculum for the Massachusetts Licensure Program 

and conducted a four-year project for the Maryland Department of Education 

supporting literacy knowledge for professors. 

Read more about LETRS and the authors at: 
lexialearning.com/letrs

Page 185 of 335

DRAFT



15

LETRS®

LETRS Consultation COMING SOON

LETRS® for Early 
Childhood Educators

LETRS® for 
Administrators

Teaching the What, Why, and How 
of Literacy Instruction

BLEN D E D

O
NL

IN
E

FACE TO FACE

The LETRS Suite of Professional Learning

The LETRS Suite of products helps literacy educators:

• Distinguish between the research base for best

practices and other competing ideas not supported by

scientific evidence

• Understand how language, reading, and writing are

related to one another

• Make instructional decisions and program choices with

reference to scientific research evidence, strategic use

of assessments, and observations of students

• Deliver comprehensive, integrated, language, and

literacy instruction as defined by standards and by

research for a given grade, age, or ability level

• Facilitate early identification and intervention with

reading problems, including dyslexia

Page 186 of 335

DRAFT



16

LETRS Changes Lives

Delivery Options

LETRS is offered in flexible implementation models  

to meet the specific needs of customers. We work with 

you early in the process to identify the delivery models 

and supports that produce the most impactful results.

Online Course 

Print Participant Book

Online Course 

Print Participant Book 

Face-to-Face/Virtual Workshops

Online Course

Print Participant Book 

Face-to-Face/Virtual Workshops 

Facilitators 

LETRS supports professional learning through: 

• A modern, blended approach with the availability of
digital and print resources and professional learning
practice to meet staff development needs.

• Face-to-face interactive sessions specific to each unit

• Optional LETRS Consulting support for teachers and
administrators.

Page 187 of 335

DRAFT



First Steps to Early Literacy

The more children know about language and literacy 

before they begin formal schooling, the better equipped 

they are to succeed in reading.  

LETRS® for Early Childhood Educators provides vital, 

applicable information about the foundational skills  

young children need before learning to read and write. 

LETRS for Early Childhood Educators: 

• Empowers teachers to understand the “what,”  “why,”

and “how” of early literacy instruction

• Aligns with the recommendations of the 2008 National

Early Literacy Panel on Developing Early Literacy

• Helps educators build deep understanding of

oral language, phonological processing, and print

knowledge

for Administrators

Champion Change

Administrators can be catalysts for facilitating change 

and implementing strong literacy instruction. LETRS® for 

Administrators is a professional learning experience that 

helps literacy leaders learn how to:  

• Create highly efficient methods of analyzing student data

• Establish highly effective instructional blocks in literacy

• Examine resources for all tiers of instruction

• Provide an insightful overview of LETRS content

to support teachers

Administrators are provided specific steps for facilitating 

change, developing a comprehensive assessment plan, 

managing resources, assembling a school leadership team, 

and making data-based decisions.

17

FOR ADDITIONAL DETAILS, VISIT: 

lexialearning.com/letrs/early-childhood-educators

FOR ADDITIONAL DETAILS, VISIT: 

lexialearning.com/letrs/administrators

Page 188 of 335

DRAFT



*

18

What Educators Say 
About LETRS

“The results have 
been incredible.” 

—Alana Cohen 
District Curriculum Specialist Rapides Parish, LA

“LETRS was the missing  
piece, especially with the shift in 

education where so many teachers 
are coming from nontraditional 

backgrounds to teach.” 
—Kimberly Bennett 

Executive Assistant Superintendent Rapides Parish, LA

“It gave us the  
springboard to change our 

instructional practices.”
—Ann Marie Thigpen 

Superintendent of Niles City Schools, OH

“LETRS is the best training I 
have received in my career.”

—Carrie Orcutt 
Instructional Coach Littleton, CO

Page 189 of 335

DRAFT



Learn more and contact us 
for a demonstration 
today.

978.405.6232 or visit  
lexialearning.com/letrs

The nation’s leading 

literacy professional 

learning is also online.

Literacy Professional 
Learning

02
-2
02

2

Page 190 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C10 - Proclamation #22-19 to Recognize May as Better Speech and Hearing Month in Clay County

Description
Every May, the American Speech-Language Hearing Association (ASHA) runs its Better Hearing and Speech Month (BHSM)
campaign to raise awareness about communication disorders.  Speech-language pathologists and audiologists throughout Florida
and the nation make a special effort to inform, educate, and raise public awareness of speech, language and hearing disorders. 
May 18th is also recognized as Speech-Language Pathologist appreciation day.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Recognize the work of Speech-Language Pathologists, Audiologists, and teachers of the Deaf/Hard of Hearing in improving
communication skills with the students of clay County.

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Establish May as Better Speech and Hearing Month and May 18th as National Speech-Language Pathologist Day.

Contact
Susan Broskie, Speech-Language Specialist, (904) 336-6873, susan.broskie@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Proclamation #22-19 National SLP Day.pdf

Page 191 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proclamation-22-19-national-slp-day.pdf


 SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 PROCLAMATION #22-19 

 WHEREAS,  each  year,  during  the  month  of  May,  the  American  Speech-Language  Hearing 
 Association  (ASHA)  promotes  Better  Hearing  &  Speech  Month  (BHSM)  to  raise  awareness  about 
 communication disorders and hearing health; and 

 WHEREAS,  each  year,  during  the  month  of  May,  speech-language  pathologists  and  audiologists 
 throughout  Florida  and  the  nation  make  a  special  effort  to  inform,  educate,  and  raise  public 
 awareness of speech, language and hearing disorders; and 

 WHEREAS,  school-based  speech  language  pathologists,  audiologists,  and  teachers  of  the  deaf/hard 
 of  hearing  dedicate  their  lives  to  helping  children  and  students  in  need  and  providing  support  in 
 schools across our district; and 

 WHEREAS,  these  professionals  are  essential  to  each  school’s  exceptional  student  education  team 
 and are invaluable support resources for schools and parents. 

 NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE  IT  RESOLVED,  that  the  School  Board  of  Clay  County,  Florida,  does  hereby 
 proclaim  May  as  Better  Speech  and  Hearing  Month  and  May  18th  as  National  Speech-Language 
 Pathologist Day. 

 Duly  adopted  and  approved  by  the  School  Board  of  Clay  County,  Florida,  this  5th  day  of  May, 
 2022. 

 ATTEST: 

 _________________________________  ____________________________________ 
 David S. Broskie  Mary Bolla, School Board Chair 
 Superintendent of Schools 
 Clay County, Florida 

Page 192 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C11 - Proclamation of Mental Health Month May 2022

Description
Recognizes the importance of coordinated mental health services in promoting the academic success of our students.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes
The citizens of Clay County will recognize and further support coordinated mental health services that support children, youth,
young adults, and families.

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
Heather McDonald 904-336-6900 heather.mcdonald@myoneclay.net; Laura Fogarty 904-336-6513
laura.fogarty@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2022 mental health awareness month proclamation.pdf

Page 193 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2022-mental-health-awareness-month-proclamation.pdf


SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORID

PROCLAMATION # 22-18

WHEREAS, the need for comprehensive, coordinated mental health services for children, youth, 
young adults, and families places a critical responsibility on our community; and

WHEREAS, it is appropriate that Clay County District Schools dedicate a time each year to 
raise the awareness of mental health; and

WHEREAS, Clay County District Schools, through its unique approach to providing 
resources to students and families with mental health needs, is striving to effectively 
help students be more successful; and

WHEREAS, Clay County District Schools, encourages its citizens to participate in uniting to 
meet the mental health needs of children and youth in our community; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the School Board of Clay County, Florida, 
does hereby proclaim May 2022 as Mental Health Month. 

Duly adopted and approved by the School Board of Clay County, Florida, this 5th day 
of May, 2022

ATTEST:

_________________________________
David S. Broskie

____________________________________ 
Mary Bolla, School Board Chair

Superintendent of Schools
Clay County, Florida

Mental Health Month

Page 194 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C12 - Navigate 360, LLC curriculum to meet requirements set forth under Rule 6A-1.094124, F.A.C.)

Description
Navigate 360 provides a web based curriculum called Suite 360: Mental Health & Prevention that is specifically tailored to meet
FLDOE required instruction topics of mental health, substance use and abuse, and child trafficking.  

Gap Analysis
Suite 360 modules will enable Clay County District Schools to ensure the required five hour minimum of instruction on
substance use and abuse, child trafficking prevention and awareness, and mental and emotional health education (Rule 6A-
1.094124, F.A.C.), is facilitated for students in all educational settings for the 22-23 school year.  

Previous Outcomes
Suite 360 modules were implemented during the 20-21 and 21-22 school years to provide the required education on the topics of
substance use and abuse, child trafficking prevention and awareness, and mental and emotional health education.  The curriculum
enabled Clay County District Schools to meet the statute guidelines and requirements.  

Expected Outcomes
All Clay County District School students will have a working knowledge of substance use and abuse, child trafficking, and
mental health awareness.  Topics include:

Youth substance use and abuse health education-
Recognition of sigs of human trafficking-
Awareness of resources, including national state, and local resources-
Prevention of the abuse of and addiction to alcohol, nicotine, and drugs-
Information on the prevalance, nature, and strategies to reduce the risk of human trafficking, techniques to set healthy
boundaries, and how to safely seek assitance

-

Information on how social media and mobile device applications are used for human trafficking-
Recognition of signs and symptoms of mental health disorders; prevention of mental health disorders; mental health
awareness and assistance

-

How to reduce stigma around mental health disorders-
The process for accessing treatment-
Strategies to develop healthy coping techniques-
Strategies to support a peer, friend, or family member with a mental health disorder-
Prevention of suicide-

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal: 3: Establish a respectful climate and culture that provides equity and access to all.
Strategy: 3.2: Develop systems and processes that focus on developing the whole child.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board will approve the purchase of the Navigate 360 curriculum, Suite 360: Mental Health &
Prevention.

Contact
Laura Fogarty 904-336-6513 laura.fogarty@myoneclay.net

Page 195 of 335

DRAFT



Financial Impact
$45, 346.09 Mental Health Assistance Allocation 22-23

Review Comments

Attachments

Navigate 360 LLC Curriculum Mental Health and Prevention 22-23.pdf

Page 196 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/navigate-360-llc-curriculum-mental-health-and-prevention-22-23.pdf


Page 197 of 335

DRAFT



Page 198 of 335

DRAFT



Page 199 of 335

DRAFT



Page 200 of 335

DRAFT



Page 201 of 335

DRAFT



Page 202 of 335

DRAFT



Page 203 of 335

DRAFT



Page 204 of 335

DRAFT



Page 205 of 335

DRAFT



Page 206 of 335

DRAFT



Page 207 of 335

DRAFT



Page 208 of 335

DRAFT



Page 209 of 335

DRAFT



Page 210 of 335

DRAFT



Page 211 of 335

DRAFT



Page 212 of 335

DRAFT



Page 213 of 335

DRAFT



Page 214 of 335

DRAFT



Page 215 of 335

DRAFT



Page 216 of 335

DRAFT



Page 217 of 335

DRAFT



Page 218 of 335

DRAFT



Page 219 of 335

DRAFT



Page 220 of 335

DRAFT



Page 221 of 335

DRAFT



Page 222 of 335

DRAFT



Page 223 of 335

DRAFT



Page 224 of 335

DRAFT



Page 225 of 335

DRAFT



Page 226 of 335

DRAFT



Page 227 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C13 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2021-22

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district, department, and division is staffed for the 2021-2022 school year.
The School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
These allocations are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve the staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904) 336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Reflected on Attachment

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 228 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C14 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2022-23

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district, department, and division is staffed for the 2022-2023 school year.
The School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
These allocations are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve the staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904) 336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Reflected in attachment

Review Comments

Attachments

22 23 Allocation Summary - May 5, 2022.pdf

Page 229 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/22-23-allocation-summary-may-5-2022_4.pdf


PROPOSED CHANGES TO STAFF ALLOCATIONS   

2022-2023 SUMMARY 

Board Meeting, May 5, 2022

School Add Delete Allocation Comment Salary Benefits Total Cost

2022-2023 ACTIONS

General Funds

FIE-0521 2.0 Teacher, VESC - ASD Allocation Correction ($101,080) ($32,619) ($133,699)

FIE-0521 2.0 Teacher, Pre-K VE Allocation Correction $101,080 $32,619 $133,699

POE-0651 0.9 ESE Assistant, G Program Needs ($16,967) ($5,475) ($22,442)

POE-0651 0.9 ESE Assistant, BH Program Needs $16,967 $5,475 $22,442

ELE-9006 1.0 Curriculum Coach, 10-Month Program Needs ($50,875) ($16,417) ($67,292)

K12-9007 1.0 Curriculum Coach, 10-Month (1143) Program Needs ($47,500) ($15,328) ($62,828)

PD-9009 0.3 Professional Learning Facilitator, 10-Month (100/1143) Program Needs ($15,252) ($4,922) ($20,174)

PD-9009 0.7 Professional Learning Facilitator, 10-Month (420/4020.3) Program Needs ($35,589) ($11,484) ($47,073)

PD-9009 2.3 Teacher Support Coach (100/6400) Program Needs $113,627 $36,667 $150,294

PD-9009 0.7 Teacher Support Coach (420/4020.3) Program Needs $35,589 $11,484 $47,073

TOTAL: $0 $0 $0

Pending Board Approval 05/05/2022

Page 230 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C15 - Monthly Financial Reports for March, 2022

Description
The Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008, are submitted for the use and consideration of the Board
for the month ending March 31, 2022.
 

Gap Analysis
The Monthly Financial Reports show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements.
 

Previous Outcomes
It has been a past (normal) practice to provide Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008.
 

Expected Outcomes
The Monthly Financial Reports are provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's finances.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Strategy 2.4:  Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board accept for use and consideration the Superintendent's Monthly Financial Reports for March,
2022.
 

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs, (904) 336-6721, susan. legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The Monthly Financial Reports reflect the year-to-date results of operations.

Review Comments

Attachments

March 2022 Board Monthly Financial Report.pdf

March 2022 Board Monthly Property Report.pdf

CONTRACTS 50 Thousand and Greater.xlsx.pdf

Page 231 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/march-2022-board-monthly-financial-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/march-2022-board-monthly-property-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contracts-50-thousand-and-greaterxlsx.pdf


Page 232 of 335

DRAFT



Page 233 of 335

DRAFT



Page 234 of 335

DRAFT



Page 235 of 335

DRAFT



Page 236 of 335

DRAFT



Page 237 of 335

DRAFT



Page 238 of 335

DRAFT



Page 239 of 335

DRAFT



Page 240 of 335

DRAFT



Page 241 of 335

DRAFT



Page 242 of 335

DRAFT



Page 243 of 335

DRAFT



Page 244 of 335

DRAFT



Page 245 of 335

DRAFT



Page 246 of 335

DRAFT



Page 247 of 335

DRAFT



Page 248 of 335

DRAFT



Page 249 of 335

DRAFT



$50,000 - $100,000 Contracts "Signed" by Superintendent for BAD monthly BOARD Financial Report
CONTRACT # SUBMITTED BY DEPT COST PO # VENDOR

210117 B Montoro 9006 $51,242.50 P2110205 Voyager Sopris Learning (LETRS)
210123 R Widdowson 9106 $54,000.00 P2202974 Pear Deck

210135 K Lawrence 9004

Amendment for 9,000
+60,000 on 200146 = 
+30,000 on 210091 = 

Total $99,000

P2101306 Family Services and Resources Center - Amendment 2

210140 B Ellis 9023 $50,000.00 P2104418 North Florida Building Code Services - Amendment 1 Renew 210040
210141 K Lawrence 9005 $50,000.00 P2202136 Family Services & Resource Center 
210144 K Lawrence 9004 $50,000.00 P2202135 First Coast Behavior Solutions
210145 B Montoro 9015 $61,588.00 P2201445 Voyager Sopis Learning Inc. (LETRS)
220010 L Fogarty 9004 $60,000.00 P2202137 Flagler Health

$50,000 - $100,000 Contracts "Signed" by Superintendent for BAD monthly BOARD Financial Report
CONTRACT # SUBMITTED BY DEPT COST PO # VENDOR

210129 B Ellis 9023 $53,305.92 P2202486 Dude Solutions - Capital Predictor Software  {School Dude}

220025 M Sanders 9005 $52,000.00 P2203541 First Coast Mobile Audiology

220038 M Sanders 9005 $90,000.00 P2204339 Family Services & Resource Center

220040 E Caren 9040 $93,818.76 P2204965 KnowBe4

$50,000 - $100,000 Contracts "Signed" by Superintendent for BAD monthly BOARD Financial Report

220065 K Lawrence 9252  Receiving $1,039,784.
No PO

This is SEDNET
Income

Lutheran Services Florida (LSF Health Systems) - Amendment 104

220086 E Caren 9040 $99,300.00 P2206875 Onix Networking / Bettercloud 

Page 250 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C16 - Budget Amendment Report for March  31, 2022

Description
Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006 requires that the School Board approve amendments to the
district school budget whenever the function and object amounts in the accounts prescribed by the State Board form are changed
from the original budget approved by the School Board.  The Budget Amendments are procedurally necessary to update our
budget to reflect changes as outlined in the attached statements.

Gap Analysis
The monthly budget amendment show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements. 

Previous Outcomes
Reported as per Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006. 

Expected Outcomes
The monthly budget amendment is provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's budget.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2: Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Approval of the Budget Amendments for March  2022, as presented.

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs

Financial Impact
See attached statements for a complete analysis of the financial impact.

Review Comments

Attachments

Budget Amendment March 2022.pdf

Page 251 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/budget-amendment-march-2022.pdf


Page 252 of 335

DRAFT



Page 253 of 335

DRAFT



Page 254 of 335

DRAFT



Page 255 of 335

DRAFT



Page 256 of 335

DRAFT



Page 257 of 335

DRAFT



Page 258 of 335

DRAFT



Page 259 of 335

DRAFT



Page 260 of 335

DRAFT



Page 261 of 335

DRAFT



Page 262 of 335

DRAFT



Page 263 of 335

DRAFT



Page 264 of 335

DRAFT



Page 265 of 335

DRAFT



Page 266 of 335

DRAFT



Page 267 of 335

DRAFT



Page 268 of 335

DRAFT



Page 269 of 335

DRAFT



Page 270 of 335

DRAFT



Page 271 of 335

DRAFT



Page 272 of 335

DRAFT



Page 273 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C17 - Deletion of Certain Items Report - April, 2022

Description
The items listed have been surveyed by the Coordinator of Property Control, at the request of the Cost Center Property Manager,
and the recommended disposition is noted.  These items are either obsolete, unusable or beyond economical repair.  These items
should be removed from active inventory and disposed of in the manner indicated.  Deletions are for property items received in
the month of March, 2022.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Property Records followed State mandate on trackable assets, Chapter 274.05.

Expected Outcomes
Tangible Personal Property shall be controlled and supervised from acquisition through transfer or disposal.  Disposal of property
shall be in accordance with Section 274.05, Florida Statutes.  All deletions of items with a value of $1,000.00 or more will be
approved by The School Board of Clay County prior to disposition - School Board Policy Section 5.03C.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2: Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability. 

Recommendation
Approve Deletion of Certain Items Report - April, 2022 as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko,
Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs
(904)-336-6721
susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Provides additional storage space and eliminates the need to account for unusable property.  Reduces the dollar value of Tangible
Personal Property.

Review Comments

Attachments

Deletion Report April 2022.pdf

Page 274 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-report-april-2022_1.pdf


Depreciation

04/30/2022

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
LCTN 0252 ORANGE PARK HIGH

11,871.69 11,871.69CAMERA:CABINET MOUNTED-HUNTER Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  04/01/2022 11/12/200910000153
1,205.14 0.00DIGITAL PHOTO/DVD-HUNTER 20-19 AudiovisualJunk/Parts  04/01/2022 11/12/200910000154

11,871.6913,076.83

LCTN 0391 MIDDLEBURG HIGH
1,940.00 1,940.00PIT:RED HIGH JUMP Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  04/01/2022 02/01/199600059574
4,998.00 4,998.00POLE VAULT LANDING SYSTEM Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  04/01/2022 01/13/199700064622
1,199.01 442.49MOWER: RIDING 42" 19HP POULAN Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  04/01/2022 12/08/201617000372

7,380.498,137.01

LCTN 0431 RIDGEVIEW HIGH SCHOOL
1,718.00 1,718.00C/M/K - APPLE IMAC 27 " LCD BG Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  04/01/2022 10/21/201011000424
7,719.00 5,237.89COPIER: DIGITAL RICOH MP6002SP Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  04/01/2022 10/09/201415000335
4,474.00 2,822.88SYSTEM: 3D COMPUTING-CHASSIS/D Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  04/01/2022 02/12/201515000788

9,778.7713,911.00

LCTN 0511 MCRAE ELEMENTARY
7,845.06 5,977.19COOLER: MILK - ATLAS METAL BMM Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  04/01/2022 02/27/201414001238

5,977.197,845.06

LCTN 7005 CLAY VIRTUAL ACADEMY
1,182.00 1,182.00LAPTOP: APPLE MACBOOK PRO MD10 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  04/01/2022 02/13/201414001265
1,182.00 1,182.00LAPTOP: APPLE MACBOOK PRO MD10 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  04/01/2022 08/13/201516000011
1,182.00 1,116.33LAPTOP: MACBOOK PRO APPLE MD10 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  04/01/2022 09/08/201617000194

3,480.333,546.00

LCTN 9004 CLIMATE AND CULTURE
2,858.00 2,109.48COPIER: DIGITAL - RICOH MP2553 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  04/01/2022 05/08/201414001181

2,109.482,858.00

LCTN 9005 EXCEPTIONAL STUDENT EDUCATION
1,105.82 0.00DISC: JAWS PROF EDITION SINGLE Computer SoftwareJunk/Parts  04/01/2022 03/25/201010000288

0.001,105.82

LCTN 9010 TRANSPORTATION
5,249.25 5,249.25MOWER: 52" ZERO TURN GRAVELY Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  04/01/2022 05/10/200700091369

5,249.255,249.25

04/30/202204/01/2022Date Range 110:51:3404/04/2022 Page 275 of 335

DRAFT



Depreciation

04/30/2022

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method

55,728.97
Totals for Deletion Report

45,847.20

Note:MARCH 2022 DELETIONS
Disposal Method Descriptions:

JUNK/PARTS - Part(s) of an asset are used and remainder of part(s) are sold, recycled or disposed

TRADE-IN - Vendor issues a credit towards a new purchase

THEFT/VANDALISM - Items stolen or broken (police report attached)

MISSING - Items lost and are not found during property inventory (Annually)

SURPLUS SALE - Items that are outdated, not working or obsolete.  Items are either sold, recycled or disposed

ENTERED IN ERROR- Not used

TRANSFER/DONATION - From Clay County District to an Outside Agency (Approved by Board or Superintendent)

DESTROYED - Fire/Natural Disaster, etc.

Total Software
1,105.82

Total Audio Visual
1,205.14

Total Vehicles
0.00

Total Furniture
53,418.01

THRESHOLD (ex. $750 TO $1000)

04/30/202204/01/2022Date Range 210:51:3404/04/2022 Page 276 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C18 - BID Renewal

Description
Renew BID as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
a. Milk Products - County Wide Bid #21-SFS-11.  Contract Period is August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2023. The contract period
is for one (1) year and is the first of three renewal options.
b. Contract Services for Site Work - Countywide Bid #19-F-231:  Contract Period is June 6, 2022 through June 5, 2023. The
contract period is for one (1) year and is the first of three renewal options.
c. Custodial Services for Selected Administrative Buildings – County Wide Bid #19-F-233:  Contract Period is July 1, 2022
through June 30, 2023. The contract period is for one (1) year and is the second of three renewal options.

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the items to meet their needs.

Previous Outcomes
Original Bid was Board approved and has been used successfully during the past term to provide quality services and products to
the district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board; we expect the contractors and vendors? to continue providing quality services and products at the
same terms and conditions as when the original Bid was awarded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2;  Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Extend renewal as follows:
a. Milk Products - County Wide Bid #21-SFS-11: 

New Dairy FL LLC, DBA Borden Dairy, 308 Ave. G SW, Winter Haven, FL  33880-
b. Contract Services for Site Work - Countywide Bid #19-F-231:

Jeff’s Excavating Inc., P.O. Box 456, Green Cove Springs, FL 32043-
c. Custodial Services for Selected Administrative Buildings – County Wide Bid #19-F-233:

Great Faith Cleaning Services, 404 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, FL 32043-

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
a. Milk Products - County Wide Bid #21-SFS-11: The total estimated expenditure for the one (1) year contract renewal is
$2,710,000.00 from Federal Revenue.

b. Contract Services for Site Work - Countywide Bid #19-F-231: The total estimated expenditure for the one (1) year contract
renewal is $375,000.00 from Capital Revenue and General Revenue.

c. Custodial Services for Selected Administrative Buildings – County Wide Bid #19-F-233: The total estimated expenditure for
the one (1) year contract renewal is $125,000.00 from General Revenue.

Page 277 of 335

DRAFT



Review Comments

Attachments

Page 278 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C19 - BID to be Awarded

Description
Award BID as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
a. Small Scale Construction - County Wide Bid #22-F-237A:  Contract Period is for a one (1) year period from May 6, 2022
through May 5, 2023 with the option to renew for three (3) additional one (1) year contract periods upon mutual agreement, in
writing.  Bid established for the purchase of qualified labor, material, equipment, tools, and supervision of multiple qualified
contractor(s) with various levels of expertise, to perform general contracting services, on an as-needed basis, for various School
Board projects $300,000.00 or less. The vendors awarded are the lowest, most responsive and responsible bidders meeting
specifications.
b. Plumbing Construction – County Wide Bid #22-F-235R:  Contract Period is for a one (1) year period from May 15, 2022
through May 14, 2023 with the option to renew for three (3) additional one (1) year contract periods upon mutual agreement, in
writing. Bid established for the purchase of qualified labor, material, equipment and supervision to perform plumbing
construction, repair and connection for existing and/or new construction and relocatable classrooms at School Board facilities.
The vendor awarded is the lowest, most responsive and responsible qualified bidders meeting specifications.

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the items to meet their needs.

Previous Outcomes
No prior bids have been awarded for Construction Continuing Services, services were previously procured by other means. Prior
Board approved Bid for Plumbing Construction will expire but it was used successfully during the past terms to provide quality
services and products to the district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board, we expect the vendor to provide quality services and products at the terms and conditions listed in
the Bid.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2;  Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Award BID as follows:
a. Small Scale Construction - County Wide Bid #22-F-237A:

C.C. Borden Construction, Inc., 1019 Rosselle Street, Jacksonville, FL 32204-
E. Vaughan Rivers, Inc., 1882 Bellair Boulevard, Orange Park, FL 32073-
Foresight Construction Group, Inc., 3491 Pall Mall Drive, Suite 204, Jacksonville, FL 32257-
Gary S. Bailey, Inc., 5201 C.R. 218, Middleburg, FL 32068-
Gateway Contracting Inc., 426 Edgewood Avenue South, Jacksonville, FL 32254-
Scherer Construction of North Florida, LLC, 2926 Edison Avenue, Jacksonville, FL 32254-
STG Contracting Group, Inc., 109 Nature Walk Parkway, Suite 103, St Augustine, FL 32092-
The Rose Group LLC, 2933 N. Myrtle Avenue #101, Jacksonville, FL 32209-
Thomas May Construction Company, 310 College Drive, Orange Park, FL 32065-
Trane U.S. Inc., 8929 Western Way, Jacksonville, FL 32256-

b. Plumbing Construction – County Wide Bid #22-F-235R:
Gary S. Bailey Inc., 5201 C.R. 218, Middleburg, FL 32068  -

Page 279 of 335

DRAFT



Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
a. Small Scale Construction - County Wide Bid #22-F-237A:  The total estimated expenditure for the one (1) year contract is
$14,000,000.00 from General and Capital Revenue.

b. Plumbing Construction – County Wide Bid #22-F-235R:  The total estimated expenditure for the one (1) year contract is
$200,000.00 from General and Capital Revenue.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 280 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C20 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for S. Bryan Jennings Elementary School
Security Lighting Repair/Replacement

Description
Each phase or a combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval. The plans have received staff
review and are complete to Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) stage.

Gap Analysis
S. Bryan Jennings Elementary School’s security lighting needs to be repaired/replaced.

Previous Outcomes
The school administration/departments have had the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project
that will meet user's expectations.

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, Preliminary and Final Plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for S. Bryan Jennings Elementary School
Security Lighting Repair/Replacement.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The project estimate of $157,000.00 provided by the Engineer is budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan. As a result of
unprecedented construction market conditions associated with the pandemic, this project will be reviewed by the Facility
Planning and Construction department after bid opening to determine funding and project feasibility.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 281 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C21 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Fleming Island High School Security
Lighting Repair/Replacement

Description
Each phase or a combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval. The plans have received staff
review and are complete to Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) stage.

Gap Analysis
Fleming Island High School’s security lighting needs to be repaired/replaced.

Previous Outcomes
The school administration/departments have had the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project
that will meet user's expectations.

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, Preliminary and Final Plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Fleming Island High School Security
Lighting Repair/Replacement.
 

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The project estimate of $337,750.00 provided by the Engineer is budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan. As a result of
unprecedented construction market conditions associated with the pandemic, this project will be reviewed by the Facility
Planning and Construction department after bid opening to determine funding and project feasibility.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 282 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C22 - Ridgeview High School Restroom Renovations Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the Educational Facilities Plan (EFP).  The award of a construction project in excess of $500,000.00
requires School Board approval.
The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute 287.055.  The project was advertised for three (3) consecutive
weeks with The Clay Today.  The bid opening was held March 31, 2022 at 1:00 p.m.  The project had two (2) bidders and met
the bid requirements. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction of Ridgeview High School Restroom Renovations.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to Thomas May Construction Company, the low bidder meeting specifications in the base bid in
the amount of $383,500.00.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

RHS Restroom Renovation Bid Tab.pdf

RHS Restroom Renovation Contract.pdf

Page 283 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/rhs-restroom-renovation-bid-tab.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/rhs-restroom-renovation-contract_1.pdf


Page 284 of 335

DRAFT



Page 285 of 335

DRAFT



Page 286 of 335

DRAFT



Page 287 of 335

DRAFT



Page 288 of 335

DRAFT



Page 289 of 335

DRAFT



Page 290 of 335

DRAFT



Page 291 of 335

DRAFT



Page 292 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C23 - W. E. Cherry Elementary School Spalling Remediation/Roof Replacement (Building 3 & 4 Reroof) Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the Educational Facilities Plan (EFP).  The award of a construction project in excess of $500,000.00
requires School Board approval.
The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute 287.055.  The project was advertised for three (3) consecutive
weeks with The Clay Today.  The bid opening was held March 31, 2022 at 2:00 p.m.  The project had two (2) bidders and met
the bid requirements. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction of W. E. Cherry Elementary School Spalling Remediation/Roof Replacement (Building 3 & 4 Reroof).

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to McCurdy-Walden, Inc., the low bidder meeting specifications in the base bid in the amount of
$167,220.00.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

WEC Spalling Remediation Bid Tab.pdf

WEC Spalling & Roof Replacement Contract.pdf

Page 293 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/wec-spalling-remediation-bid-tab.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/wec-spalling-roof-replacement-contract_1.pdf


Page 294 of 335

DRAFT



Page 295 of 335

DRAFT



Page 296 of 335

DRAFT



Page 297 of 335

DRAFT



Page 298 of 335

DRAFT



Page 299 of 335

DRAFT



Page 300 of 335

DRAFT



Page 301 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C24 - Orange Park High School Front Entrance Security Enhancement Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the Educational Facilities Plan (EFP).  The award of a construction project in excess of $500,000.00
requires School Board approval.
The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute 287.055.  The project was advertised for three (3) consecutive
weeks with The Clay Today.  The bid opening was held April 4, 2022 at 3:00 p.m.  The project had one (1) bidder and met the
bid requirements. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 
 

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to Thomas May Construction Company, the low bidder meeting specifications in the base bid in
the amount of $999,619.00.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

OPH Front Entrance Security Enhancement Bid Tab.pdf

OPH Front Entrance Security Contract.pdf

Page 302 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/oph-front-entrance-security-enhancement-bid-tab.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/oph-front-entrance-security-contract.pdf


Page 303 of 335

DRAFT



Page 304 of 335

DRAFT



Page 305 of 335

DRAFT



Page 306 of 335

DRAFT



Page 307 of 335

DRAFT



Page 308 of 335

DRAFT



Page 309 of 335

DRAFT



Page 310 of 335

DRAFT



Page 311 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C25 - Middleburg High School Roof Repair/Replacement (Building 1) Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the Educational Facilities Plan (EFP).  The award of a construction project in excess of $500,000.00
requires School Board approval.
 
The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute 287.055.  The project was advertised for three (3) consecutive
weeks with The Clay Today.  The bid opening was held April 4, 2022 at 2:00 p.m.  The project had two (2) bidders and met the
bid requirements. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction of Middleburg High School Roof Repair/Replacement (Building 1).

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to BBG Contracting Group., the low bidder meeting specifications in the base bid in the amount
of $3,020,470.00.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

MBHS Roof Repair.Replacement Building 1 Bid Tab.pdf

MHS Roof Replacement Bldg 1 Contract.pdf

Page 312 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/mbhs-roof-repairreplacement-building-1-bid-tab.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/mhs-roof-replacement-bldg-1-contract.pdf


Page 313 of 335

DRAFT



Page 314 of 335

DRAFT



Page 315 of 335

DRAFT



Page 316 of 335

DRAFT



Page 317 of 335

DRAFT



Page 318 of 335

DRAFT



Page 319 of 335

DRAFT



Page 320 of 335

DRAFT



Page 321 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C26 - Change Order #2 for Middleburg Transportation Fuel System Repair/Replacement

Description
Change Orders are initiated by the Contractor, Architect/Engineer or Owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the
project as defined by the plans and specifications. Change Orders are reviewed by the Architect/Engineer and staff prior to
submission to the School Board for approval. This change order is to supply materials and labor for the installation of required
safety protection for above ground storage tank facility.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Change Order # 2.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This change order will increase the contract amount by $9,505.00.   Architect fees will increase by $807.93 as a result of this
change order. These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

CO 2 Middleburg Transportation Fuel System.pdf

Page 322 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/co-2-middleburg-transportation-fuel-system.pdf


Page 323 of 335

DRAFT



Page 324 of 335

DRAFT



Page 325 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C27 - Approval of the Interlocal Agreement between the School Board of Clay County, Florida and the City of Keystone
Heights, Florida for Pecan Street improvements to close Pecan Street

Description
Keystone Heights Elementary (KHE) desires to temporarily close Pecan Street during pick up and drop off times each school day
to improve student safety.  The City of Keystone Heights has approved the Interlocal Agreement to permit such temporary
closures.  CCDS Facility Planning & Construction agrees to fund the purchase and installation of the swing-arm gates necessary
for the closure.

Gap Analysis
No action would result in limited ability to control thru-traffic on Pecan Street during the designated bus pick up and drop off
time windows which remains a student safety concern.

Previous Outcomes
The School Board has previous approved Interlocal Agreements between Clay County and its municipalities.

Expected Outcomes
It is expected the School Board will approve the Interlocal Agreement in order to improve student safety in the KHE bus loading
and unloading zones. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approval of the Interlocal Agreement to allow for additional safety measures in the KHE bus loading area.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The financial impact is $13,032.50. These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Contract Review Form - Interlocal with the City of Keystone Hts..pdf

Interlocal Agreement with the City of Keystone Hts..pdf

Page 326 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contract-review-form-interlocal-with-the-city-of-keystone-hts.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/interlocal-agreement-with-the-city-of-keystone-hts_1.pdf


Page 327 of 335

DRAFT



Page 328 of 335

DRAFT



Page 329 of 335

DRAFT



Page 330 of 335

DRAFT



Page 331 of 335

DRAFT



Page 332 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C28 - Pre-Qualification of Contractors

Description
Section 1013.46 of Florida Statutes requires School Boards to pre-qualify contractors prior to their being able to bid on
construction projects for the district. The rules for pre-qualification are stipulated in the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF). The attached list identifies the contractors to be approved this month. As this is an annual requirement, the
attached list may contain both new contractors and contractors seeking to renew their pre-qualification status. Per Florida
Statutes, only those contractors currently pre-qualified at the time of bidding may bid on a School Board construction project.

Gap Analysis
Contractor Pre-Qualification is an annual requirement.

Previous Outcomes
CCDS complies with contractor pre-qualification as required by Florida Statutes and SREF (State Requirements for Educational
Facilities).

Expected Outcomes
CCDS will remain in compliance by certifying the contractors recommended for pre-qualification meet the requirements of
Section 1013.46 FS, the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) and School Board Policy.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve the attached Contractor Pre-qualification list.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 5.5.22.pdf

Page 333 of 335

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-5522.pdf


SBCC PRE-QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS 
 
 
The following contractors are being submitted to the School Board for Contractor Pre-Qualification approval 
having met all requirements of Chapter 1013.46 F. S., as determined by the Pre-Qualification Committee 
consisting of Michael Kemp, Phil Hans, Bertie Staefe, Chris Deely-Isais and Beth Clark.  The pre-qualification 
certification is valid for one year from the end of the month in which Board approval is obtained. 

 
 

COMPANY TRADE CATEGORY BOND LIMIT EXPIRATION DATE 

Assurance Electrical, LLC Electrical Contractor $300,000.00 May 31, 2023 

BBG Contracting Group, Inc. Roofing Contractor $12,000,000.00 May 31, 2023 

C.C. Borden Construction, Inc. General Contractor $18,000,000.00 May 31, 2023 

Elkins Construction, LLC General Contractor $250,000,000.00 May 31, 2023 

Harrell Construction Company, Inc. General Contractor $15,000,000.00 May 31, 2023 

Jenkins Roofing, Inc. Roofing and Building 
Contractor 

$10,000,000.00 May 31, 2023 

Parrish McCall Constructors, Inc. General Contractor $250,000,000.00 May 31, 2023 

Perry McCall Construction, LLC General Contractor $250,000,000.00 May 31, 2023 

W.W. Gay Mechanical Contractor, 
Inc. 

Mechanical and Plumbing 
Contractor 

$100,000,000.00 May 31, 2023 

 

Page 334 of 335

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 5, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 335 of 335

DRAFT


